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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to today's Finance Committee hearing. My

          4  name is David Weprin, I'm Chair of the Finance

          5  Committee. I'll introduce my colleagues that are

          6  here now, and I know a number of them will be coming

          7  up shortly. On the left is Council Member Eva

          8  Moskowitz from Manhattan. Next to her is Council

          9  Member Madeline Provenzano from the Bronx. Next to

         10  her is Council Member Michael Nelson from Brooklyn,

         11  next to him is Council Member Gale Brewer from

         12  Manhattan, and on my immediate right is Jim Caras

         13  Counsel to the Finance Committee, and walking back

         14  is Larian Angelo, the Director of Finance, and a

         15  number of other Finance staff around.

         16                 Today we have a number of items on

         17  our agenda. Today we are considering Intro. 564, the

         18  local law that would establish a new Sutphin

         19  Boulevard Business Improvement District in Queens

         20  County.

         21                 On October 15th, 2003, this Committee

         22  held the opening hearing on this introduction and

         23  gave all those interested in the establishment of

         24  the BID an opportunity to appear. We then adjourned

         25  the hearing for the statutorily mandated 30-day
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          2  objection period, which is the time during which

          3  property owners objecting to the establishment of a

          4  BID may file objections. We will hear from

          5  Department of Small Business Services and the City

          6  Clerk, but it's my understanding that no objections

          7  were filed.

          8                 Therefore, if we can answer the

          9  following four questions affirmatively, we may adopt

         10  a local law establishing the BID. Four questions we

         11  must be prepared to answer are as follows:

         12                 Number one, were all notices of

         13  hearing for all hearings required to be held

         14  published and mailed as required by law and

         15  otherwise sufficient?

         16                 Two, does all the real property

         17  within the district boundaries benefit from the

         18  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

         19  provided by the law?

         20                 Three, is all real property

         21  benefitted by the district included within the

         22  district?

         23                 And, four, is the establishment of

         24  the district in the best interest of the public?

         25                 If the Committee finds in the
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          2  affirmative on these four questions, and the number

          3  of objections required to prevent the creation of

          4  the BID were not filed, then the legislation can be

          5  adopted.

          6                 We will ask the Department of Small

          7  Business Services to address these questions.

          8                 In addition, we will consider three

          9  preconsidered resolutions which together will amend

         10  the property tax resolution we adopted along with

         11  the budget on June 27th, 2003.

         12                 State law in effect on June 27th,

         13  capped the increase attributable to any class share

         14  at five percent. Subsequent state legislation

         15  amended the law to establish a lower cap at two

         16  percent. So, today we are amending the three

         17  property tax fixing resolutions to reflect a change

         18  in law, holding class share increases for any class

         19  of property to two percent, rather than five

         20  percent.

         21                 With this legislation and these

         22  amended resolutions, class 1 properties will save an

         23  average of $72.

         24                 So, in effect, we're reducing

         25  people's property taxes by passing these resolutions
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          2  today.

          3                 Finally, we will consider one

          4  preconsidered Land Use item, partial tax exemption

          5  for 1,100 one- and two-family homes and 1,100 rental

          6  and condo units in the Arverne By The Sea project.

          7  That is part of the plan for the Arverne Urban

          8  Renewal area in Council Member Sanders' and

          9  Addabbo's district, and is supported by both of

         10  them.

         11                 I understand there were a number of

         12  members from the Housing Preservation and

         13  Development here to answer any questions that may be

         14  had on the Arverne project, so I would ask them to

         15  come forward at the present timed.

         16                 We have also been joined by a number

         17  of my colleagues. We have Council Member Lew Fidler

         18  from Brooklyn, Council Member Simcha Felder from

         19  Brooklyn.

         20                 HPD. And if you could just all

         21  identify yourselves for the record, with names and

         22  titles.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: I'm

         24  Carol Clark. I'm the Assistant Commissioner for

         25  Local Legislative Affairs at HPD, and I'm joined by
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          2  David Jackson, who is the Assistant Commissioner for

          3  Homeownership, and Erica Sims, who is the Project

          4  Manager for Arverne.

          5                 Do you have any questions regarding

          6  this Council members?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Does anyone have

          8  any questions for HPD about the Arverne Project?

          9                 Council Member Brewer.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I know I

         11  should probably know this having worked with the

         12  Housing Authority Across the street, or the Arverne,

         13  Edgemere now called something else I think, Ocean

         14  Bay, my question is what is the income for this

         15  particular Arverne on the Sea for the individuals

         16  who are moving in there?

         17                 I know you have different scales, but

         18  just generally what is it?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JACKSON:

         20  Typically the homes that are being developed now

         21  will cost $395,000, and that's affordable with the

         22  rental unit for a family earning approximately

         23  $60,000 a year.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Each one of

         25  the development homes has a rental in it? Is it all
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          2  two-family?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JACKSON: No.

          4  It's a mix of one- and two-family homes.

          5                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any other

          7  questions?

          8                 Seeing none, you're excused. Thank

          9  you.

         10                 We're now going to hear testimony on

         11  the Sutphin Boulevard application. The first witness

         12  will be Patrick Sinmoi (phonetic) from the City

         13  Clerk's Office.

         14                 Do you have prepared statement or

         15  testimony? Just identify yourself for the record.

         16                 MR. SINMOI: Hello. My name is Patrick

         17  Sinmoi. I'm the Counsel to the City Clerk's Office.

         18                 With respect to the Sutphin Boulevard

         19  BID, to date we have received no objections from

         20  anyone.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, and all the

         22  noticed provisions went out on time, and according

         23  to statute?

         24                 MR. SINMOI: I guess it's a question

         25  that needs to be directed to the small business
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          2  folks in the small business. We typically just get

          3  the objections, we don't send out the notices.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, has anybody

          5  objected orally besides written objections?

          6                 MR. SINMOI: No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Any of my

          8  colleagues have any questions?

          9                 You're excused.

         10                 MR. SINMOI: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We'll now here

         12  from George Glatter from the Department of Small

         13  Business Services and Leon Fonsa, as well.

         14                 ASSISTANT GLATTER: Good morning,

         15  Chair Weprin, members of the Finance Committee. My

         16  name is George Glatter. I am Assistant Commissioner

         17  of the Neighborhood Development Division of the

         18  Department of Small Business Services, and I'm

         19  joined by Leon Fonsa, Senior Manager, at the

         20  Department of Small Business Services.

         21                 The Sutphin Boulevard BID Steering

         22  Committee has undertaken a comprehensive and

         23  intensive outreach campaign to inform local property

         24  owners and business owners about the district plan.

         25                 All outreach activities have been
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          2  thoroughly documented. During the period commencing

          3  in 2001, outreach activities included steering

          4  committee meetings, informational mailing to

          5  property owners, including a need survey of property

          6  owners and merchants, door-to-door distribution of

          7  BID information to property owners, and business

          8  owners, public information meetings to which all

          9  property owners, business owners and residents are

         10  invited to attend.

         11                 Phone conversations and individual

         12  meetings with the property owners or business

         13  owners, carried out by members of the steering

         14  committee, and a very extensive and intensive media

         15  coverage of the BID formation efforts were all

         16  undertaken.

         17                 As required by the BID law, the

         18  Sutphin Boulevard BID Steering Committee mailed the

         19  summary of the City Council resolution to each owner

         20  of real property within the proposed district at the

         21  address shown on the latest City assessment roll,

         22  and such other persons as are registered with the

         23  City to receive tax bills concerning real property

         24  within the district, and to tenants of each building

         25  within the proposed district.
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          2                 In addition, SBS arranged for the

          3  required publication of a copy of the summary of the

          4  resolution in the City record.

          5                 Our review concludes that no

          6  objections were filed in terms of either the number

          7  of property owners or percentage of assessed

          8  valuation, and, therefore, it is within the

          9  acceptable threshold of less than 51 percent needed

         10  to advance the bill for consideration to the full

         11  City Council. In fact, there were no objections

         12  filed against this BID.

         13                 SBS requests that the City Council,

         14  having determined that the four questions outlined

         15  by the Chairman, as required by the law, be answered

         16  in the affirmative by Section 25-407 of the New York

         17  City Administrative Code.

         18                 The Department of Business Services

         19  -- Small Business Services supports the

         20  establishment of the Sutphin Boulevard Business

         21  Improvement District in the Borough of Queens.

         22                 In our judgment, it will improve

         23  business conditions and a quality of life in

         24  Jamaica, making downtown Jamaica a shopping

         25  destination of choice, in conjunction with the
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          2  completion of the air train and the proposed

          3  adjacent developments.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Glatter.

          7                 Any questions from Mr. Glatter?

          8                 Is there anyone in the audience that

          9  might want to speak on the proposed BID that did not

         10  speak at the last hearing?

         11                 Seeing none, we'll move on to the

         12  next item.

         13                 We're going to couple the Sutphin

         14  Boulevard BID with the tax fixing resolution. So,

         15  we'll hold off on voting on the Sutphin Boulevard

         16  BID, but thank you.

         17                 We have been joined by Council Member

         18  Margarita Lopez from Manhattan. Welcome. A member of

         19  this Committee.

         20                 Okay, we'll now ask Larian Angelo,

         21  Director of Finance, and Nadine Felton, from the

         22  Finance Division, to come up to testify on the cap

         23  on the tax-fixing resolutions. And if you could just

         24  identify yourselves for the record.

         25                 MS. ANGELO: Larian Angelo. Director
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          2  of Finance Division.

          3                 MS. FELTON: Nadine Felton, Assistant

          4  Director, Finance Division.

          5                 Today we're amending the three

          6  resolutions we adopted in June that set the tax

          7  rates for Fiscal 2004. When we adopted the rates on

          8  June 27th, at that time we adopted them, according

          9  to State law, which has a cap on class share

         10  increases of five percent, as the Chairman

         11  explained.

         12                 The Council, we had requested the

         13  State Legislature to lower that cap on class shares

         14  to two percent, which we have done in the last few

         15  years. We cannot lower the cap on class shares

         16  unless the State acts. The State acted over the

         17  summer, and the Governor signed it into law in

         18  August. So, what we're doing today is amending the

         19  rates that we adopted in June to reflect the lower

         20  cap.

         21                 The effect of this basically, it

         22  doesn't change the levy, the amount of tax levy that

         23  we raised for '04, what it does is just shifts some

         24  of the levy from class 1 to classes 3 and 4. Class 1

         25  is your one-, two-, and three-family homeowner;
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          2  class 3 are your utilities; and class 4 is your

          3  commercial industrial property. Class 2 are co-ops

          4  and condos and apartment rentals, but they're not

          5  affected by this in any way. Their rate remains the

          6  same as the one that we adopted in June.

          7                 The savings, as mentioned, for a

          8  typical class 1 homeowner with a market value of

          9  about 340,000 is $72. If we don't do this action,

         10  which we're actually required to do it now by state

         11  law, then the rates that we adopted in June would be

         12  the ones used for the fiscal year and it would be

         13  higher for class 1.

         14                 There are three resolutions that we

         15  have to do. The first is the current base proportion

         16  resolution, which actually sets the class share,

         17  according to state law, and that's going to be

         18  amended from five to two percent. Then the second

         19  resolution is the adjusted base proportion because

         20  those class shares get adjusted for physical

         21  changes, so that has to reflect the lower cap, and

         22  then, finally, the tax-fixing resolution itself,

         23  which sets the tax rates, will be amended to reflect

         24  the new tax rates for Fiscal '04.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, and just
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          2  for clarification purposes; Ms. Felton, when you

          3  indicated we had to act because the State

          4  Legislature passed a law, that was at our request,

          5  at the City Council, is that not correct?

          6                 MS. FELTON: That's correct, yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, just for

          8  clarification purposes.

          9                 MS. FELTON: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Ms. Angelo, do

         11  you have anything to add?

         12                 MS. ANGELO: I have nothing to add.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any questions

         14  from any of my colleagues.

         15                 Council Member Brewer.

         16                 I knew there was a reason we put you

         17  on this Committee.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm sorry. I'm

         19  always asking questions.

         20                 I understand what you're saying and I

         21  appreciate, not only earlier explaining it to me,

         22  but the class 1 person who is the owner, they will

         23  not see any -- will they see any difference in their

         24  bill? Will it be something that's visible?

         25                 MS. FELTON: Yes, the bills that were
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          2  mailed out in June that everybody got for the first

          3  half of the year, they were based on last year's

          4  rates.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          6                 MS. FELTON: So what will happen --

          7  which has happened, I must say, the last few years

          8  because we had adopted the budget on June 27th, the

          9  Department of Finance is permitted to send out the

         10  bills by June 5th, if we don't adopt the budget by

         11  the 5th, and often we do this because we don't want

         12  people to get the five percent bills. So, anyway,

         13  yes, so that what will happen in the fall, later

         14  this month actually, the Department of Finance will

         15  send out new bills reflecting these rates.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And people

         17  will see a difference you feel.

         18                 MS. FELTON: They'll see a difference.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In terms of

         20  the -- all right, thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         22  Lopez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What is the

         24  difference that they're going to see? Can you tell

         25  me in percentage points? Can you tell me in numbers
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          2  what that means?

          3                 MS. ANGELO: For the average class 1

          4  homeowner, their taxes will be about $72 lower than

          5  they would have been without this action.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And what is

          7  average?

          8                 MS. ANGELO: That's an average market

          9  value of --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: That's a $340,000

         11  house, I think she stated before. $340,000

         12  single-family home. 340,000.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I'm sorry.

         14  340,000.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The value of the

         16  home.

         17                 MS. FELTON: The sales price, yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That's the

         19  average house.

         20                 MS. FELTON: That's right. That's the

         21  average. That's from the assessment rolls, yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: If it's more than

         23  340, it would be more than $72; if it's less than

         24  340, it would be less than $72.

         25                 MS. FELTON: That's right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And the $72

          3  will be per year for that year.

          4                 MS. ANGELO: Yes. For that year, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And that money

          6  is not going to come into the coffers, therefore?

          7                 MS. ANGELO: No, no, no. The levy will

          8  not change. So this is not a tax reduction. It's a

          9  shifting of some of the burden of the levy from

         10  class 1 to classes 3 and classes 4.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank

         12  you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I have a

         14  question.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We've been joined

         16  by Council Member Perkins, who has a question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So what does

         18  this mean for renters?

         19                 MS. ANGELO: It means nothing for

         20  renters. Renters are held harmless. Their class

         21  share only increased by two percent, so they are at

         22  the new count. It won't hurt them, it won't help

         23  them.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So as it

         25  shifts from three and four, what does it mean for
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          2  three and four?

          3                 MS. FELTON: They'll get a slight

          4  increase. Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Slight is how

          6  much?

          7                 MS. FELTON: For a retail store, a

          8  citywide retail store valued at about $600,000,

          9  they'll get about a $200 increase in their bill.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And 4?

         11                 MS. ANGELO: That is 4. That's an

         12  increase of $200 more than it would have been, not

         13  necessarily a $200 increase.

         14                 MS. FELTON: Yes, their bill may be

         15  different, but it's instead of, as a result of the

         16  rate change, the difference in the rates that we

         17  adopted in June, and they're different than the ones

         18  today.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  So for 3

         20  what does it mean?

         21                 MS. ANGELO: Three is always a

         22  difficult class to get a hand on, because it's

         23  utilities. And the utility property tax is assessed

         24  in a very different way than all the other classes.

         25                 Part of what's included in the
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          2  assessment is fixed equipment. And how this will --

          3  I think what you're trying to get at is how will

          4  this have an impact on utility bills, and that is

          5  something we really have never been able to quite

          6  get a handle on.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          8  Lopez.

          9                 I'm sorry.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes, a few

         11  more questions.

         12                 Then the mystery because of what?

         13                 MS. ANGELO: Because utility property

         14  is so fundamentally different than any other kind of

         15  real property, again, it included equipment, and

         16  because the utilities are a semi-regulated industry

         17  at this point, it's very difficult to see how a

         18  change in the property tax translates into a change

         19  in the utility bill.

         20                 Just as it would be very difficult to

         21  say how a change in property tax is a change in the

         22  cost of the bagel you buy. I mean, it's a very

         23  difficult thing to kind of work through.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me ask

         25  one last question.
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          2                 As you can sort of give an idea of

          3  what the average home is, what is the average

          4  rental? What does two percent mean for the average

          5  rental?

          6                 MS. FELTON: Well, there's no change

          7  in their bill. Their tax bill won't change as a

          8  result of what we're doing today, because the rate

          9  that we adopted in June is the same for class 2 or

         10  the rentals as the one we're adopting today.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What does the

         12  two percent increase mean?

         13                 MS. ANGELO: It's not a two percent

         14  increase in the rate or the bill, it's a two percent

         15  increase in the share of the burden that class two

         16  bears.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I guess the

         18  bottom line is, how does this translate into the

         19  rent bill?

         20                 MS. ANGELO: It will not. What you're

         21  doing today will have no impact on the rent bill.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         24  Lopez, did you have a question?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In regard of
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          2  the utility bill -- the utility class, it's

          3  traditionally transferred to the people who use this

          4  utility, the increases on taxation to these

          5  particular properties, correct?

          6                 MS. ANGELO: That's a reasonable

          7  assumption, yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And most likely

          9  than not they're going to do that?

         10                 MS. ANGELO: That's a reasonable

         11  assumption, yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And what would

         13  be the increase therefore? I want to know in

         14  dollars.

         15                 MS. ANGELO: This is the problem we're

         16  having, it's hard to translate the increase in the

         17  property tax into an increase in utility bills.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: But I don't

         19  want to know that. I want to know the increase on

         20  the property taxes for them, that's what I want to

         21  know.

         22                 MS. ANGELO: Actually because the

         23  class share for utilities and class 4 has been

         24  declining, while you're shifting part of the burden

         25  from class 1 to classes 3 and 4, they're actually --
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          2  both those classes are still experiencing a decline

          3  in their tax rate.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Still tell me

          5  the number.

          6                 MS. ANGELO: Still experiencing a

          7  decline in their tax rate.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand

          9  that, but I want to know the number. I want to know

         10  the number because I see what's coming down the

         11  pike. Then I want to hear the number.

         12                 MS. ANGELO: The change in the tax

         13  rate for class 3 will be 1.2 percent decline. The

         14  change in the tax rate for class 4 will be 1.3

         15  percent decline.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Decline.

         17                 MS. ANGELO: Decline, yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And then that

         19  translates in dollars and cents to what?

         20                 MS. ANGELO: To 15 cents.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Fifteen cents.

         22                 MS. ANGELO: Decrease.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Decrease.

         24                 MS. ANGELO: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank
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          2  you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The utility

          4  bill, it's not going to be increased to the

          5  customer?

          6                 MS. ANGELO: I would never assume the

          7  utility bill won't increase.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want

          9  to --

         10                 MS. ANGELO: No, the action you're

         11  doing today should in no way cause utility bills to

         12  increase.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         14                 But there may be other reasons but

         15  not this --

         16                 MS. ANGELO: Yes, sir, there may

         17  indeed be other reasons.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         20  McMahon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman.

         23                 Ms. Angelo and Ms. Felton, I always

         24  have a problem understanding the relationship

         25  between the class shares and assessed values, and

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  there are different caps that affect both, and how

          3  do they relate to each other?

          4                 MS. ANGELO: The class share

          5  discussion is a measure of relative increase, so

          6  it's as if you and I sat down and had Thanksgiving

          7  dinner and I gained five pounds and you gained ten

          8  pounds, and I'm fat and you're fatter, so

          9  essentially what's happening generally speaking --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Well, in my

         11  case it's really not a hypothetical.

         12                 MS. ANGELO: Nor in mine.

         13                 Generally what's speaking is the

         14  value of property in New York City is rising and so

         15  what class share burden does is measure the relative

         16  increase. It's not an absolute measure, it's a

         17  relative measure.

         18                 Caps and assessment, Class 1 is in

         19  the unique position of having its assessment

         20  increases capped so that in effect a Class 1 home

         21  may be increasing in value, and we will only capture

         22  part of that value in the assessment.

         23                 Whereas, these other classes,

         24  although the assessment increases are phased in, all

         25  of the increase in value will eventually go into the
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          2  assessment.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And am I

          4  correct in assuming that State law mandates the

          5  relative relationship saying in the City of New

          6  York, if you have a total tax bill, that real estate

          7  tax bill, that you need to close your budget of say

          8  $5 billion, which we all know it's a little bit

          9  more, but say $5 billion, then you must collect that

         10  money in a way that's in relative proportion amongst

         11  the four shares; is that correct?

         12                 MS. ANGELO: That's correct. The State

         13  essentially tells us what the class shares are. The

         14  City really has very little leeway in deciding this,

         15  and in fact the only leeway you have is the leeway

         16  you will exercise today.

         17                 This is all codified in State Law,

         18  you have a very small ability to change it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay, just

         20  one or two more, if I may, Mr. Chairman.

         21                 In the case of the single-family home

         22  that we talked about before which has what now, an

         23  average value of $340,000?

         24                 MS. ANGELO: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. In the
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          2  course of a year, what happens to their tax bill,

          3  and how does the relative relationship of assessment

          4  of class share and assessment effect that?

          5                 I own a home for $340,000, what

          6  happens to me in the course of a year? What has

          7  happened and what will happen to me?

          8                 MS. FELTON: Well, you'll get your

          9  taxes, what they are for this year, and whatever

         10  they are, they will remain what they are. Then the

         11  Department of Finance will assess it for next year,

         12  and I think a lot of class 1 homes, for example, for

         13  this year, their assessments may have increased

         14  between five and six percent. So, in fact, the

         15  classes assessments as a whole increase by five

         16  percent, so this may mean people might experience an

         17  increase from last year because of the assessment

         18  increases.

         19                 Now, the assessments of course are

         20  done by state law, by the Department of Finance,

         21  under certain rules and regulations that are set up

         22  by state law and procedures developed by the

         23  Department of Finance.

         24                 So, what is the assessment is the

         25  assessment, and, of course, the people of all
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          2  classes, including class 1 homeowners, have the

          3  opportunity to protest their assessments once the

          4  roll comes out in January if they think they're too

          5  high, but this also drives what change would be in

          6  your property.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But I pay my

          8  mortgage, I pay my taxes from my mortgage, so I

          9  don't know. When does that bill, that change in

         10  assessment come out? When is that reflected? Because

         11  I get a bill sent to me how often?

         12                 MS. ANGELO: I think what you're

         13  trying to get at is, it's a peculiar system, because

         14  all the assessments are done and finished by June,

         15  and you should simply get a tax bill that doesn't

         16  change, and that's how it would be. Except the

         17  Department of Finance sent the bills out early, on

         18  June 5th, before we had settled the budget, and the

         19  State did not act in time for us to incorporate this

         20  limit on the cap by the time we fixed the tax

         21  fixing.

         22                 So, homeowners do get the sense of

         23  their bill changing during the year when in fact

         24  nothing has changed.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And when will
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          2  they get this new bill, November 15th to be paid

          3  January 1st?

          4                 MS. FELTON: Well, the Department of

          5  Finance will probably start sending them out later

          6  this month in time for December 1st. Yes. To be paid

          7  January 1.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: To be paid

          9  January 1.

         10                 MS. FELTON: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So that bill,

         12  which will be for the second half of Fiscal Year

         13  '04, will reflect the change in assessment?

         14                 MS. FELTON: No, the assessments have

         15  already been reflected in the first bill.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So it will

         17  reflect the change in class share, that

         18  relationship?

         19                 MS. FELTON: That's right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Which will be

         21  a two percent increase as opposed to a five percent

         22  increase?

         23                 MS. FELTON: That's about right, yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, the

         25  homeowner will get a bill which will reflect a two
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          2  percent --

          3                 MS. FELTON: Yes, because the tax

          4  rate, the class 1 tax rate will go about two percent

          5  as opposed to --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So if we

          7  didn't take the action that we take today, that

          8  increase will be automatically five percent?

          9                 MS. FELTON: Actually a little more.

         10  It will be about, yes, about five percent.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Will be five

         12  percent. By voting this through, which is actually

         13  just a ratification of what we did in June as part

         14  of an overall City bail out package which included

         15  the City and the State and the Mayor and everybody

         16  else. If we didn't do that, then they would have a

         17  five percent increase. By doing this, they're

         18  getting a two percent increase, and then the only --

         19  okay, all right.

         20                 I would like to say a three percent

         21  decrease, but I think that it's very confusing,

         22  obviously even for us all, but also why in God's

         23  name does the Department of Finance do this twice a

         24  year? Why don't they just do it once a year?

         25                 MS. ANGELO: Well, part of the problem
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          2  is that the Department of Finance sent the bills out

          3  on June 5th in order to protect the City's cash

          4  flow, because did not come to a budget agreement

          5  until the end of June.

          6                 On the other hand, we can't act, the

          7  Council can't act on this until the State

          8  Legislature acts.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay.

         10                 So, what we're doing now was part of

         11  the budget deal. After the budget deal was struck,

         12  the State authorized us to do this and we're now

         13  coming back to do it in time for the next set of

         14  bills that go out to complete fiscal year '04.

         15                 MS. ANGELO: That's correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay.

         17                 And in effect, we're decreasing the

         18  homeowner's bill by three percent, even though it's

         19  still going to go up two percent?

         20                 MS. ANGELO: That's correct.

         21                 MS. FELTON: Right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Which is

         23  required by state law?

         24                 MS. ANGELO: That's correct.

         25                 MS. FELTON: Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          4  Fidler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I thought I

          6  understood what was going on, now I'm not so sure.

          7                 When those bills went out on June

          8  5th, and the existing law in the State of New York

          9  capped the class share burden, capped the class

         10  share at five percent, did the bills go out with the

         11  five percent cap, as calculated already?

         12                 MS. FELTON: No, the bills went out --

         13  what they do, and when they send them out before we

         14  adopt the new rates for the fiscal year, they go out

         15  at the prior year rate. So, the bills went out for

         16  '04, for Fiscal '04, the bills that were sent out

         17  in June were based on the Fiscal '04 assessments,

         18  which was like about, from a lot of people, were

         19  it's a five or six percent increase, but based on

         20  Fiscal '03 tax rates.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I see. So,

         22  rather than assuming the five percent cap, they

         23  assume no increase and wait for us to do it so that

         24  it appears even though we're cutting their taxes

         25  we're raising their taxes?
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          2                 MS. FELTON: Well, I don't know. If

          3  they had sent the bills out let's say June 28th,

          4  they would have had to send them out at the five

          5  percent cap.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: We didn't have

          7  a tax rate on June 5th for the next fiscal year.

          8                 MS. ANGELO: The Department of Finance

          9  has the authority to send out bills on last year's

         10  tax rates if there was no budget agreement by that

         11  date.

         12                 But the problem is the State

         13  Legislature did not act in time for the Council to

         14  put these new caps into place, because the Governor

         15  didn't sign the bill until August. So that, you

         16  know, amending the tax-fixing resolution in the fall

         17  is a fairly routine thing for the Council to do,

         18  because often the State doesn't act in time.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I just, you

         20  know, I hope everyone here in this room understands

         21  that in December our Class 1 homeowners are going to

         22  get a bill and they're going to call us all up and

         23  say why did you raise my taxes again. Because this

         24  process which is imposed upon us is Byzantine and

         25  absolutely, notwithstanding the explanation from
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          2  Professor Angelo -- I fully don't understand it. I

          3  consider myself, you know, reasonably well-trained

          4  to understand these kind of things, I can't begin to

          5  explain this to a constituent as to how we voted

          6  today, and obviously we have to do this today,

          7  there's no question that we need to do this today,

          8  vote yes, that we took steps to reduce their tax

          9  bill, yet the dollars coming out of their pocket

         10  increases, and, you know, it's obvious to me that

         11  the Council and the State Legislature needs to come

         12  to some kind of, you know, panel that's going to

         13  look at how we do this, because it seems to me so

         14  twisted and bizarre and nontransparent.

         15                 I mean, I could understand not being

         16  able to explain to a taxpayer every aspect of the

         17  tax code, but this should be something that's easy

         18  to explain and it's impossible to explain, and I

         19  think that we need to have some kind of joint, you

         20  know, state/city panel that's going to look at this

         21  entire question and try and turn this into something

         22  that makes sense at least to somebody who has some

         23  background in all of this.

         24                 Because I sense, Larian, that as

         25  expert as you are, you strain to understand it and
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          2  explain it because it is so bizarre.

          3                 MS. ANGELO: I strain every day.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          5  Brewer.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you. Two

          7  quick issues. One is, I am the one who gets those

          8  bills and they are very complicated and I would like

          9  to second what Lew Fidler said, and also add that

         10  when we have this discussion, that somebody who has

         11  a designed capacity looks at those bills and figures

         12  out, particularly for the individual home-owner,

         13  maybe for the commercial where there's a large

         14  management team, it's something that makes more

         15  sense, but it is going to be very confusing,

         16  particularly after the 18 and a half percent.

         17                 It's also a question of this very

         18  long, elongated bill with different perforations

         19  that says take this part, don't take this part and

         20  they all look alike, and that's a very confusing

         21  situation.

         22                 I also want to ask about utilities.

         23  What is a utility? To me it is of course the phone

         24  company, the electrical gas company, is it also the

         25  franchises, is it the cable companies, is it the
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          2  new, but what I call broadband fiber companies? What

          3  exactly is a utility? As we move into a more

          4  complicated age of technology we have more fiber

          5  dark and other under our streets, are they part of

          6  this discussion? Is the wireless part of this

          7  discussion? What is a utility?

          8                 MS. FELTON: It includes actually what

          9  you mentioned, and a lot of the cable are also

         10  included in it.

         11                 MS. ANGELO: And we can get you a

         12  list.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. I would

         14  appreciate that.

         15                 MS. ANGELO: I'm not sure about the

         16  dark fiber.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I would

         18  appreciate that list. Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         20  Provenzano.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         22  I just want to follow-up a little bit on what

         23  Council Member Fidler said.

         24                 I'm one of those that totally doesn't

         25  understand it. I have absolutely no head for
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          2  finance, so I kind of believe everything you tell

          3  me.

          4                 MS. ANGELO: That's what we like about

          5  you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I know.

          7                 But we do this every year, put this

          8  cap on, correct? So, for the '03 budget, what did we

          9  cap it at?

         10                 MS. FELTON: Two percent.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Two

         12  percent also?

         13                 MS. ANGELO: And we also did it in the

         14  fall.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. So

         16  then where does this five percent come in?

         17                 MS. ANGELO: Five percent is what is

         18  in the state law. The state law says no classes

         19  class share can increase by more than five percent

         20  in any year.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: So because

         22  we didn't act on it, because the state didn't so we

         23  didn't, the five percent kicked in.

         24                 MS. ANGELO: That's true.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.
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          2                 MS. ANGELO: Although, the bills were

          3  sent out before any tax rate was fixed.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: But we

          5  seem to be blaming Finance for sending the bills out

          6  early; I mean how could they possibly have sent them

          7  out like June 28th or 29th when the first tax

          8  payment had to be made July 1st?

          9                 MS. ANGELO: I think Finance was only

         10  seeking to protect the cash flow of the City. No

         11  blame.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay. I

         13  had another question but I don't remember what it

         14  was.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         16  Lopez, did you have a further question?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand

         18  the complications that you are putting in place

         19  here; is any way that we can modify this process

         20  that our Department over the years had looked at

         21  that possibility of making this process one in which

         22  these kind of problems don't happen?

         23                 Meaning by that, taxpayers receiving

         24  a notice on June 5th and then six months later

         25  they're told, oh, that was not the right number; is
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          2  there any way that you guys had looked at

          3  possibilities of looking at this problem?

          4                 MS. ANGELO: Well, part of the problem

          5  is the Council can't act until the State acts, and

          6  in most years the Council's preference is to lower

          7  the cap from five percent to something lower than

          8  that, and so you're in a situation where you can't

          9  act until the State Legislature has acted.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Is there any

         11  way that we can send a home rule message to the

         12  State Legislature in which this is not the best way

         13  for us in the City to deal with this and modify it

         14  for ourself.

         15                 MS. ANGELO: I mean, I think we can

         16  look into it, but it would require compelling the

         17  State Legislature to act before the Council and the

         18  Mayor adopted their budget.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand

         20  that, but, Larian, I'm trying to make sure there is

         21  not a stone moved by us that we can in order to fix

         22  this problem.

         23                 If by the end of the day we move all

         24  of the stones and we couldn't, I'd be in peace, and

         25  when you answer me back, you are telling me that at
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          2  the end of the day whatever I do is going to be

          3  nothing, and I want to make sure that that's what

          4  I'm understanding, and that's what you're telling

          5  me?

          6                 MS. ANGELO: Well, I think that the

          7  suggestion that a task force or something be created

          8  among the Council members to sit down and explore

          9  other options probably would help.

         10                 I think all I'm saying to you is

         11  right now my sitting here at this moment, I don't

         12  know how to do it differently. I don't know how to

         13  compel the State Legislature to act before the

         14  Council and the Mayor adopt the budget.

         15                 This doesn't mean there isn't another

         16  solution.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Mr. Chair, I

         18  would like to suggest to you, as the Chair of this

         19  Committee, to convey that task force to look into

         20  this issue, at least on the side of the Committee

         21  themselves, to see how we can come with a possible

         22  suggestion to deal with this problem.

         23                 I don't think that we should continue

         24  year after year sitting, making our statements known

         25  by everybody that we disagree with the way this is
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          2  done, that we understand it's a problem when the

          3  State Legislation doesn't act, that we depend on

          4  them. I think that is a fatalistic attitude, and I

          5  think that in the Council we should have a different

          6  attitude, and it's the attitude of try and see how

          7  we can change things, if at the end of the day we do

          8  not accomplish that, at least we have the

          9  satisfaction that we tried.

         10                 Then I suggest very strongly that you

         11  do that and move forward with a task force to look

         12  into that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council member,

         14  it's a very good suggestion, and I will take it up

         15  with staff and we'll definitely look into it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Just look into

         17  it to see if it's possible.

         18                 One last point, the utility that

         19  we're talking about, I want to clearly enumerate

         20  them - cable TV, electricity, water, is included in

         21  it?

         22                 MS. ANGELO: No. Water is part of the

         23  Water Authority, separate and apart.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then telephone

         25  company. A satellite TV system is included on this?
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          2                 MS. ANGELO: We will get you a

          3  complete list. I'm not sure. There's a lot of new

          4  ones that have been added, and the State does this

          5  special franchise. We can get you the list.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The reason I'm

          7  asking that one in particular, also I want to call

          8  the attention to the Council to that fact, that we

          9  are having a system that is providing, you know, TV

         10  to people through the satellite system that perhaps

         11  they are not contributing to the tax base of the

         12  City of New York, just because they're not

         13  necessarily based in New York State or City, and I

         14  want to understand the structure in which they pay

         15  taxation, and to who they pay taxation, particularly

         16  when the people are switching from one system of

         17  cable TV to the satellite TV, and I think that the

         18  City of New York should not lose in the equation.

         19                 MS. FELTON: Well, we can get you the

         20  list certainly. We have a list of who is included in

         21  the utilities.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then the

         23  translation of this changes in taxation, perhaps we

         24  are going to see it on all of those utilities that I

         25  mentioned, and ones that happen, it would be too
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          2  late for us to do anything else about it, because

          3  once we pass this, it's over for us, correct? We

          4  don't have a way to impact influence or change that

          5  end result.

          6                 MS. ANGELO: Do you mean the end

          7  result of this tax-fixing resolution?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Once we pass

          9  that here, all of us, we voted for it, in regard of

         10  the utilities, in particular, we will not have any

         11  other venue, any other place in which we can

         12  influence the process of reducing the possible

         13  transfer of the payments in taxes to them.

         14                 MS. ANGELO: Not for this fiscal year,

         15  no.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: This will be

         17  it.

         18                 MS. ANGELO: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then it's

         20  important for all of us to be aware of that, because

         21  all of those utilities are directly connected to

         22  economic development, and the desire and the need

         23  that we have in increasing the economic development

         24  of our City to make sure that we come back from

         25  where we were before September 11th to where we are
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          2  today.

          3                 I finished.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          5                 Council Member Nelson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair.

          8                 Just briefly, we have to as a body

          9  appeal to the state brothers and sisters. We have to

         10  have some sort of a cap, a moratorium on this,

         11  without a doubt. To go to our constituents and tell

         12  them we're saving them three percent when they're

         13  paying two percent, it's going to be convoluted at

         14  best. They're not going to understand that, they're

         15  not going to want to understand.

         16                 We have hit our homeowners with such

         17  an incredible tax increase, because we actually had

         18  to. That's another thing that was difficult to

         19  explain to them, and the loss of library services,

         20  police and so on, et al, ad nauseam. To do something

         21  like this again and again, it's just such a hit on

         22  the people of the City of New York, and again, it

         23  does affect attendance as well, because many

         24  landlords will just want to raise attendance as

         25  well. This is very bad for all of us. We've got to
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          2  seriously look into this, because if we don't it's

          3  going to be an ongoing circus and I don't want to be

          4  part of that circus. I don't want to have to vote

          5  for this again.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          8                 Council Member Sears.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair.

         11                 I'm not going to repeat everything

         12  that I've heard. Just a couple of points of

         13  clarification.

         14                 The bills went out in June and they

         15  reflected the five percent, the cap?

         16                 MS. ANGELO: No. The bills went out in

         17  June at the new assessment but at the old tax rate.

         18  Because the Council had not yet fixed the tax rate.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I understand

         20  that. Okay.

         21                 So, as a result, the bills that --

         22  the second set of bills that will be going out will

         23  reflect a decrease from the previous bills that they

         24  received, because if we're voting on this today,

         25  we're voting on this cap at two percent, because the
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          2  State Legislature only shows us that when we do a

          3  budget and the State Legislature has not done

          4  theirs, we are truly messed up and that's the big

          5  issue.

          6                 We also know that the State

          7  Legislature picks out things that they go back to

          8  Albany to vote on and not a whole budget. So,

          9  perhaps the Committee that Councilwoman Lopez

         10  suggested would deal with identifying this

         11  particular thing and then advocating when they go

         12  back where they haven't voted on a full budget to

         13  deal with the thing that very much affects the

         14  home-owners, and that's what I think the Committee

         15  should look at because the State stretches out their

         16  budget indefinitely, and it behooves us to see that

         17  they target something like this so that when they're

         18  called back for a day or two, that's one of their

         19  agenda items.

         20                 Secondly, if the bills that are going

         21  out do not reflect a decrease, the I am extremely

         22  confused, and I thought I understood the entire

         23  process, it was explained to me extremely well.

         24                 MS. ANGELO: The bills that go out,

         25  the action today will lower the tax rate from what
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          2  it would have been without the action. However, the

          3  tax rate this year for Class 1 will not be lower

          4  than it was last year, even though the overall tax

          5  rate was the same.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, does that

          7  mean that it will not be lower, even though the tax

          8  rate is the same because of this cumbersome fact

          9  that one body, legislative body, did not vote to

         10  support what another legislative body voted on?

         11                 I could see why everybody here is

         12  really confused in terms of their Class 1 getting a

         13  bill that is the same, doesn't reflect a decrease

         14  when in essence you're actually saying that it is a

         15  decrease from the cap of five percent, but it's not

         16  a decrease because we had agreed to keep the two

         17  percent. Is that the bottom line? I think so. I

         18  really think so.

         19                 MS. ANGELO: The share of the levy

         20  attributed to class 1, will go up by two percent,

         21  because of your action here today, rather than five

         22  percent.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Five percent.

         24                 MS. ANGELO: But the rate, as compared

         25  -- this year as compared to last year, will not be
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          2  a lower tax rate for that class.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The bills went

          4  out in June.

          5                 MS. ANGELO: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: What was the

          7  rate that was reflected in those bills? Because what

          8  I'm trying to see is, if somebody paid their bills

          9  in full, we take this action today, is there a

         10  rebate to that?

         11                 MS. ANGELO: No. Let me just, as a

         12  point of comparison.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

         14                 MS. ANGELO: The rate, the tax rate

         15  for class 1 last year, Fiscal '03, was 14.160. At

         16  the five percent cap, the bill for Fiscal '04 would

         17  have been 14.979 because of the action the Council

         18  will take today, the rate for '04 will be 14.550,

         19  lower than it would have been, but higher than it

         20  was last year.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. I

         22  understand.

         23                 I think I agree with my colleagues

         24  that we have to be prepared for an avalanche of

         25  extreme discontent and confusion.
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          2                 I'm finished. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          4  Perkins had a brief question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 I, obviously, join the chorus of

          8  concern my colleagues have expressed this morning

          9  regarding the confusion, the sort of Byzantine

         10  nature of this process, and the call for more

         11  visible understanding, simpler understanding,

         12  transparency, all the good government buzz words

         13  that are applicable that will sort of rationalize

         14  the process and make it easier for our constituents

         15  to understand what's going on, and would like

         16  anxiously want to participate in any task force or

         17  such effort, and would hope that the Chair would

         18  take some leadership in initiating the formation and

         19  implementation of the idea.

         20                 However, unintended consequences, you

         21  know, sometimes you have to be careful what you ask

         22  for. Are there some unintended consequences that

         23  might become apparent in this that we may not at the

         24  moment anticipate because we're basically dealing

         25  with the frustration of having to respond to a two
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          2  percent increase, I mean in your experience?

          3                 MS. ANGELO: Well, the thing about I

          4  unanticipated consequences is they're not

          5  anticipated.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Well,

          7  sometimes we know what they could be. To speculate.

          8                 MS. ANGELO: Yes, I understand. What I

          9  can say is that this action today is designed to

         10  preserve to the extent possible, which means I

         11  suppose to the Council, to the extent permitted by

         12  State law and regulation. Property tax rates on

         13  residential housing, class 2 is held harmless, class

         14  1 is reduced. That burden is shifted to utilities

         15  and commercial properties because those properties

         16  will still experience a reduction in the tax rate.

         17  What the unintended consequences of that may be in

         18  the future, I couldn't speculate.

         19                 Again, the two commercial classes

         20  will have a decrease in their tax rates. The two

         21  residential classes will have a moderation of the

         22  increase in their tax rates.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Who would you

         24  say under the present Byzantine arrangement are the

         25  beneficiaries of this process? What class benefits
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          2  the most? What class?

          3                 MS. ANGELO: I don't know that any

          4  particular class benefits.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

          6                 There are those who might say class 1

          7  does; have you heard that rumor?

          8                 MS. ANGELO: I guess I need the

          9  question clarified. I thought you were asking me who

         10  benefits from having this process be as difficult to

         11  understand as it is, and I'd have to say I can't see

         12  anyone benefitting from the difficult nature of a

         13  property tax.

         14                 If you're asking me who is

         15  benefitting from the lowering of the cap from five

         16  percent to two percent, I suppose I would say class

         17  1 is, class 2 is held harmless, class 3 will still

         18  have a decrease in this rate, although not as much

         19  of a decrease as it would have had, and class 4 will

         20  also have a decrease in its rate, although not as

         21  much as it would have had.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Is it

         23  possible -- I just want to be very upfront about it,

         24  since we're in this part of the water, is it

         25  possible that class 1 could be hurt if we sort of
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          2  rationalized the process as has been suggested?

          3                 MS. ANGELO: Again, I think there's a

          4  difference between the process and what has been

          5  done.

          6                 During the budget negotiations, every

          7  delegation sat and talked about this issue of

          8  lowering the cap from five percent to something

          9  lower.

         10                 The recommendations of the

         11  delegations were taken to the budget negotiating

         12  team, and the budget negotiating team settled on a

         13  two percent cap.

         14                 That was all done within the Council

         15  and the Council's internal mechanism.

         16                 The Council at that moment had the

         17  opportunity to not load the cap at all, if it had

         18  chosen to do that, but the sense of the delegation

         19  and the budget negotiating team was to lower the

         20  cap.

         21                 That, Councilman, I believe is very

         22  different from the process being objected to here

         23  today, which is that the homeowner, and in fact all

         24  property owners in this City, get several different

         25  bills during various points in the year, all of
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          2  those bills are different, and it becomes very

          3  confusing and very difficult to manage.

          4                 Now, that change in the bill was the

          5  result of two things; the Department of Finance

          6  sending out the bill on June 5th before there was a

          7  budget agreement and before the tax rates were

          8  fixed, and the State Legislature not acting on the

          9  Council's request for a two percent cap, and the

         10  Governor not signing that bill until August.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Should the

         12  Finance Department send out the bill once instead of

         13  several times throughout the year? I mean, is that

         14  part of the rationalization of the system, that it

         15  would send out one bill at one point in time?

         16                 MS. ANGELO: Well, that can be quite

         17  difficult, because the rationale the Finance

         18  Department uses for sending out the bills on June

         19  5th, is that they would like to make sure the City

         20  has sufficient cash flow. So that's certainly, you

         21  know, a reasonable thing.

         22                 I mean, obviously, for the taxpayers,

         23  it would be easier to simply get a bill that doesn't

         24  change.

         25                 It would have meant the Council and
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          2  the Mayor coming to a budget agreement before June

          3  5th, it would have meant the State Legislature

          4  acting before June 5th and the Governor signing

          5  before June 5th.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

          7                 MS. ANGELO: Which has happened on

          8  rare occasions. Very rare, but on occasion.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: When is the

         10  last time you recall it happening?

         11                 MS. ANGELO: We will get back to you

         12  on that, but it has happened on rare occasions.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Has it been

         14  in the last ten years?

         15                 MS. ANGELO: It has been within living

         16  memory, yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Living

         18  memory. Okay.

         19                 MS. FELTON: In Fiscal 1997 we adopted

         20  the budget on June 12th, and we also had the cap,

         21  the cap on class shares at that time was lower than

         22  two and a half percent. Only one bill went out.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Only one bill

         24  went out?

         25                 MS. FELTON: And it went out to the
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          2  tax rate that reflected the lower cap on class

          3  shares.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So it went

          5  out June 5th, and that was it?

          6                 MS. FELTON: No, I think what happened

          7  was, since the agreement was so close between the

          8  Mayor and the Council on the budget and the state,

          9  that by June 12th everything was fine and they could

         10  send the bills out.

         11                 There was a little leeway there for

         12  the Department of Finance to send the bills out.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So the State

         14  was on board or was timely, the City and the Council

         15  were timely?

         16                 MS. FELTON: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What struck,

         18  what lightning struck or made that happen?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: May I?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: If you'd

         21  like.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: That was

         23  when the old Council was going out and they wanted

         24  to give this perfect example of financial

         25  responsibility to the new people that were coming
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          2  in. Tongue and cheek.

          3                 MS. ANGELO: I think Fiscal '97 was

          4  also a very good year financially for the City, and

          5  I think perhaps Finance Department was not very

          6  worried about cash flow, and I'm speculating now,

          7  and I think because the Council and the Mayor was so

          8  close to striking the deal, they felt they could

          9  risk sending, you know, sending the bills out on

         10  June 12th, instead of June 5th.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         13  Provenzano, did you have a further question?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Just one

         15  simple little thing, although nothing seems simple

         16  here this morning, but, they used the five percent,

         17  when we haven't done this whole mish-mosh, so they

         18  just used the five percent. Why don't they use the

         19  old rate, '03 it would have been two percent, so why

         20  do they keep going back to the five percent?

         21                 MS. ANGELO: No, the Finance

         22  Department sent out the bills on June 5th at the old

         23  rate.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Which was?

         25                 MS. ANGELO: Which was 14.160. Which
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          2  included the two percent cap.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Okay, it

          4  was two percent. Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

          6  Tracy Boyland.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Larian, just

          8  for a bit of clarity, let me just reiterate, and

          9  correct me if I'm wrong.

         10                 We've already raised the property tax

         11  18 percent, so now we're actually questioning the

         12  ability for us and to stop the Administration from

         13  raising it a total of five percent, but in actuality

         14  it's raised two percent, which means a total of 20

         15  percent across the board? Give me a bit of clarity

         16  on that.

         17                 MS. ANGELO: No, that's not -- the

         18  overall average tax rate for all the property

         19  classes remains the same, it remains what it was

         20  last year. How that burden is apportioned among the

         21  classes will change each year, depending on how the

         22  State decides to apportion that that burden out.

         23  That's the class share argument.

         24                 Within that state law, the City is

         25  given discretion to shift that burden ever so
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          2  slightly. That shifting of that burden, the slight

          3  shifting of the burden is the matter before you

          4  today. So there has been no increase in the overall

          5  property tax rate.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. So,

          7  we're trying to deter them from doing the five

          8  percent increase, or the increase, period, or the

          9  shifting itself.

         10                 MS. ANGELO: The Council decided last

         11  June that they would ask the State to lower the cap

         12  increase on class shares from five percent to two

         13  percent. The State acted, the Governor signed the

         14  legislation, and this is the amendment to the taxing

         15  resolution that's before you today.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: So, in

         17  correlation to the 18 percent increase that we've

         18  already implemented, how does that play a role in

         19  all of this, or does it?

         20                 MS. ANGELO: It doesn't play a role.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         22                 MS. ANGELO: The 18 and a half percent

         23  basically raised the overall tax rate last year.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right.

         25                 MS. ANGELO: And the tax-fixing
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          2  resolution enacted by the Council in June did not

          3  increase that overall rate.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we're now

          6  going to couple all the resolutions for a vote.

          7                 I'm just going to explain first what

          8  we're coupling.

          9                 The first one we're coupling is

         10  Intro. 0564, which is the establishment of the

         11  Sutphin Boulevard Business Improvement District,

         12  which had no objection.

         13                 The second item will be the Land Use

         14  referral on Arverne By The Sea, Homeownwership

         15  Program, Community District 14, which was

         16  preconsidered and in Council Member Sanders'

         17  District. And then we're going to also couple the

         18  three separate tax-fixing resolutions that we've

         19  been discussing this last hour or so.

         20                 Before we go to a vote on all the

         21  coupled resolutions, I'm going to call upon Council

         22  Member James Sanders, Jr., who is the Council Member

         23  from the Arverne District, to make a little

         24  statement on the project and on the Land Use item

         25  that we're going to be voting on.

                                                            61

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 Council Member Sanders.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you

          4  very much, Mr. Chair. It's a pleasure to be with

          5  this Committee.

          6                 As the members of this Committee

          7  undoubtedly know, outside of Manhattan my district

          8  has the largest amount of development in this City.

          9  Outside of Manhattan.

         10                 Roughly 30 years ago an urban

         11  development, or urban renewal project took place in

         12  the Rockaways Queens where miles of bungalos were

         13  moved and taken down to do something for affordable

         14  housing, which never took place. This land laid

         15  baron for more than 20 years, 30 years, until

         16  several plans have been floated to do something with

         17  this area. The one that has the greater chance of

         18  success if called Arverne By The Sea. This is 2,400

         19  units of market rate housing. Now, this project,

         20  although I'm in favor, has the -- and it's nothing

         21  to do with the people sponsoring it, it has to do

         22  with the plan, has things that need to be

         23  understood.

         24                 Sadly, most of my current

         25  constituents would be priced out of Arverne By The
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          2  Sea, however, working with Benjamin and Beechwood,

          3  the developers, they have assured me that we have

          4  created a condo mechanism that will allow at least

          5  ten percent of these homes to be available for my

          6  constituents, ten to at least 12 percent. There are

          7  problems that have to be sorted out, as any large

          8  project would, access to the beach, things of this

          9  nature; however, I am hardened by the good

         10  relationship the community has with Beechwood and

         11  Benjamin, where the developers have made a major

         12  point in being good neighbors. This allows me to

         13  believe that we will continue this process.

         14                 Phase three of this project allows me

         15  to have some more input in terms of affordable

         16  housing. So I am very much encouraging everybody to

         17  vote yes for this project and let's get some

         18  building done in the Rockaways.

         19                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. And

         20  thank you very much to this Committee.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         22  Councilman Sanders.

         23                 Now we're going to proceed to a vote

         24  on the five resolutions coupled.

         25                 Please call the roll.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Boyland.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Mr. Chairman,

         16  may I briefly be excused to explain my vote?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So ordered.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: First,

         19  obviously, we have to vote yes on today's

         20  resolution. It is obvious to me, I just did a little

         21  quick math, I want my colleagues to understand that

         22  if the average homeowner is saving $72 by the action

         23  that we're taking today, it means that the tax bill

         24  that the average homeowner is going to get is going

         25  to reflect the $48 increase, which kind of seguays
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          2  into my next point, which is this process is absurd,

          3  it's Byzantine, you know, I've already determined in

          4  my mind, we need to have a task force, not just for

          5  this Council but together with the State

          6  Legislature, because they need to be on the same

          7  page. And while we're doing it, we want to not only

          8  just consider this ridiculous process that has three

          9  different elements that not one person in this room

         10  could explain the average taxpayer, but why we get

         11  multiplicity of tax bills, why some communities are

         12  over-assessed as opposed to other communities, based

         13  upon when the homes were built and other factors, as

         14  a recent study showed, and also the issue of equity

         15  for co-op and condo owners.

         16                 I think we ought to take a look at it

         17  from the beginning to the end, and, you know, along

         18  the lines of Margarita, maybe we won't be able to

         19  effect change, but we certainly owe taxpayers

         20  looking at it.

         21                 And the last thing I want to say is

         22  that Brooklyn recommended one percent. I just want

         23  that on the record.

         24                 And I vote aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: McMahon.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: He's going to say

          3  Staten Island recommended zero percent.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I will get to

          5  that point, but I do request leave of the Chairman

          6  to explain my vote.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So ordered.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And it is of

          9  course particularly on the preconsidered resolution,

         10  which deals with the shifting of a small portion of

         11  the tax burden for tax 1 properties. And I would

         12  just like to make clear for the record that in June

         13  we voted a vote that set the budget, which is a City

         14  spending plan, as well as a tax-fixing resolution,

         15  which fixed the taxes for New York City for all real

         16  estate taxes, and I believe the total number of that

         17  tax levy was 12,250,000,000. We are not changing

         18  that number today. What we are doing by this vote,

         19  we are saying that within that amount, Class 1

         20  homeowners should, instead of having an automatic

         21  increase of five percent in their relative share in

         22  relation to the others, we're holding that down to

         23  two percent.

         24                 Now, I know that there are those who

         25  would say, and Staten Island, as the Chairman noted,
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          2  did say that increase should be zero, but because of

          3  the votes that were taken our Council members, that

          4  increase was brought to two percent. By voting no I

          5  would in effect be voting to make that increase five

          6  percent, because that's what would happen

          7  automatically. So, although I would prefer to say,

          8  to go back to what our recommendation from Staten

          9  Island from June of zero percent, I also do not want

         10  the Class 1 homeowners in my district to get more of

         11  an increase than they will get. And, so, I will vote

         12  yes, because they will get some relief, although

         13  it's not as much as I had hoped for.

         14                 I would also like to say that, at

         15  this point, not by Council Member Felder -- Fidler,

         16  I was looking at you out of the corner of my eye,

         17  Fidler, all of those complaints that we have about

         18  the system should be addressed, and I would advocate

         19  that as well but for the reasons stated here. I vote

         20  yes on all matters. Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Pass.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Pass.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Pass.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I'm going

          9  to be voting aye for Intro. 564, and aye on

         10  preconsidered Land Use Arverne by the Sea, and I'm

         11  going to abstain on the three preconsidered tax

         12  fixing resolutions until the Stated Meeting. Thank

         13  you.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: May I be

         16  temporarily excuse to explain my vote?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So ordered.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I'm going to

         19  vote, although I'll be disappointed in voting

         20  without hearing the learned comments of -- oh, the

         21  intelligence comments of my learned colleague Simcha

         22  Felder, I want to associate myself with the comments

         23  of Council Member Fidler. And I want to first

         24  commend Council Member Sanders for the good work

         25  that he's doing in his district. I have a similar
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          2  situation in the Midland Beach community, but I want

          3  to commend James for the good work.

          4                 I want to vote aye on Intro. 564; yes

          5  on preconsidered Land Use, and will abstain on the

          6  preconsidered tax-fixing resolutions for now. Thank

          7  you.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Felder.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 13 in the

         11  affirmative, zero negative, no abstentions --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: No, no, two

         13  abstentions.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Intro. 564 and

         15  preconsidered LU are adopted by a vote of 13 in the

         16  affirmative, zero negative, no abstentions, by a

         17  vote of 10 -- 11 in the affirmative, zero negative,

         18  two abstentions, preconsidered resolutions are

         19  adopted.

         20                 Council Members, please sign the

         21  reports.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, we're going

         23  to keep the record open for a reasonable period of

         24  time, for those colleagues that are in and out, and

         25  have not signed the Committee report.
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          2                 So, please sign the Committee report,

          3  and this Committee is now adjourned.

          4                 (Subsequently Council Members Lopez,

          5  Quinn, DeBlasio and Rivera voted aye. The vote

          6  stands at 15 in the affirmative, zero in the

          7  negative and two abstentions.)

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 12:03 p.m.)
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